
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2023 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of September 5, 2023. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing September 23, 2023 as Women in Politics Day. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

3. Public hearing to consider conveyance of certain city-owned real estate located adjacent to 6317 
Development Drive to KATZ Properties, LLC. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 09/09/2023) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title of certain 
city-owned real estate located adjacent to 6317 Development Drive to KATZ Properties, LLC. 

Old Business 

4. Pass Ordinance #3041, amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to parking 
requirements for institutional uses in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), upon its third & final 
consideration. (requires 5 aye votes) 

5. Pass Ordinance #3042, amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
establishing a Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission, upon its third & final consideration. 

6. Pass Ordinance #3043, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to prohibiting parking on certain portions of Dakota Street, upon its third & final 
consideration. 

1



Page 2 of 3 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

7. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of September 5, 2023 relative to the 
following item: 
a) Future Forward Cedar Falls 2025: Community Wide Strategic Plan. 

8. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Escapology Cedar Falls, 2518 Melrose Drive, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) Holiday Inn & Suites Hotel/Event Center, 7400 Hudson Road, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor 
service - renewal. 
c) The Ragged Edge Art Bar & Gallery, 504 Bluff Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service – 
renewal. 
d) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 
temporary additional outdoor service. (September 23, 2023) 
e) Aldi Inc., 315 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class B retail alcohol - new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

9. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

10. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Cooperative Agreement with the Iowa Civil 
Rights Commission for FY24. 

11. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
1113 Lindale Road. 

12. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
1119 Calumett Drive. 

13. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
2520 Central Avenue. 

14. Resolution approving and accepting Local Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services Grant 
Program funding from the Iowa State Fire Marshal Division relative to providing fireworks safety 
education materials. 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of an Enhance Iowa Community Attraction & 
Tourism (CAT) Grant application for funding assistance relative to the Cedar Falls High School 
community swimming pool located at West 27th Street. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of a grant application to the Black Hawk County 
Gaming Association for funding assistance relative to the Cedar Falls High School community 
swimming pool located at West 27th Street. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Understanding with the City of 
Waterloo, contracting with Mosaic Community Planning for preparation of a 5-Year Consolidated 
Action Plan and updated Analysis of Impediments relative to Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) and HOME Programs. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Red House Studio Lease with Taylor Hansen 
relative to the use of 224 West Seerley Boulevard as artists’ studio space, in conjunction with the 
Hearst Center’s Visiting Artist Program. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Public Art Committee Agreement for Lease of 
Artwork with Rachel Heine relative to placement of a sculpture at 311 Main Street. 

20. Resolution approving and accepting a stipend from the Iowa Arts Council for funding operations 
support relative to the Poetry Out Loud competition at the Hearst Center. 

2



Page 3 of 3 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of a GIG Fund grant application to Arts Midwest 
relative to an art invitational at the Hearst Center. 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of an application for an Iowa Tourism Grant for 
funding relative to digital advertising to promote Cedar Falls. 

23. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Boulder Contracting, LLC relative to 
the 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 1. 

24. Resolution approving and accepting a Warranty Deed, in conjunction with the Ashworth Drive 
Extension Project. 

25. Resolution setting October 2, 2023 as the date of public hearing on a proposed ordinance granting a 
partial property tax exemption to KL Iowa 01, LLC for construction of a new warehouse and 
manufacturing facility at 6313 Production Drive. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

26. Allow Bills and Claims for September 18, 2023. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

Executive Session 

27. Executive Session to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss strategy 
with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation is imminent where its 
disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the position of the governmental body in that 
litigation. 

Adjournment 

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse (electronically), Harding, Sires, Dunn. Absent: Ganfield. Mayor Green led 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

54433 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of August 21, 2023 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54434 - Mayor Green read the following proclamations: 
 

Proclamation recognizing September 2023 as National Suicide Prevention 
Month. Black Hawk – Grundy Mental Health Center representative Tom Eachus, 
LISW commented. 

Proclamation recognizing September 17-23, 2023 as National Constitution Week. 
Daughters of the American Revolution (DAR) representatives Barb Gregerson, 
Debbie Crawford and Debbie Goodenbour accepted and commented.  

54435 - Reverend Michael Blackwell, Cedar Falls, spoke about racism and the need for 
action in Cedar Falls. 

 
  Bobbi Jo Page, Grundy County, also commented on racism. 
 
54436 -     Public Works Director Schrage provided an update on the Cedar River 

Recreational Improvements Project. 
 
  Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager Pickar provided information about the 

Panthers on Parade Project. 
 
  Mayor Green recognized Northern Iowa Student Government Liaison Noah 

Hackbart’s return to City Council meetings. 
 
54437 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of August 26, 

2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing to consider entering into an 
Agreement for Private Development, and to consider conveyance of certain city-
owned real estate to Cedar Falls Partners, LLC. It was then moved by Dunn and 
seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54438 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed agreement and conveyance. Upon being advised that there were no 
written communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

Economic Development Coordinator Graham provided a summary of the 
proposed agreement and conveyance. There being no one else present wishing 
to speak about the proposed agreement and conveyance, the Mayor declared 
the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
54439 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,293, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development 
and a Minimum Assessment Agreement; and approving and authorizing 
execution of a Deed Without Warranty, conveying certain city-owned real estate 
to Cedar Falls Partners, LLC, be adopted. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#23,293 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54440 -    It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3038, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to establishing temporary long-term daily permits for municipal parking 
lots or facilities, be passed upon its third and final consideration. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Kruse, 
Harding, Sires, Dunn. Nay: deBuhr. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Ordinance #3038 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54441 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,294, 

approving and adopting an amendment to the FY24 Fee Schedule relative to 
establishing temporary long-term daily parking permits for the municipal parking 
lots or facilities, be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Kruse, Harding, Sires, Dunn. Nay: 
deBuhr. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,294 duly 
passed and adopted. 

54442 - It was moved by Schultz and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3040, 
amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to establishing a 4-way stop at the intersection of Center Street & Lone 
Tree Road, be passed upon its third and final consideration. Following a 
comment by Jim Newcomb, Cedar Falls, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, Harding, Sires, Dunn. Nay: deBuhr, Kruse. Motion carried. The 
Mayor then declared Ordinance #3040 duly passed and adopted. 

54443 - It was moved by Schultz and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #3041, 
amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to parking 
requirements for institutional uses in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), 
be passed upon its second consideration. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Dunn, Schultz and Sires, and Tom Hagarty, Cedar Falls, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Sires. 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

Nay: Dunn. Motion carried. 
 
54444 - It was moved by Schultz and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3042, 

amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
establishing a Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission, be passed upon its second 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Kruse, Harding, Sires, Dunn. Nay: deBuhr. 
Motion carried. 

 
54445 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Ordinance #3043, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to prohibiting parking on certain portions of Dakota Street, be passed 
upon its second consideration. Following questions by Councilmembers Sires, 
Dunn and deBuhr, and responses by Dr. William Henninger, UNI, Mayor Green 
and Public Works Director Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Schultz, Kruse, Harding, Sires, Dunn. Nay: deBuhr. Motion carried. 

 
54446 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

 Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of August 21, 
2023 relative to the following items: 
a) Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation. 
b) Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee Transition to a Commission. 
c) Comprehensive Plan Review. 

 Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of July 2023. 

 Approve an Order Accepting Acknowledgement/Settlement Agreement with The 
Music Station, Inc., a/k/a Mini Mart, 1420 West 1st Street, for a second tobacco 
violation. 

 Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) The Brass Tap, 419 & 421 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor 
service - renewal. 
b) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 
c) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street – Plaza, Special Class C retail alcohol 
& outdoor service – temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (September 
21, 2023) 
d) Blue Room, 201 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol – temporary outdoor 
service. (September 23, 2023) 
e) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow, 115-117 Main Street, Class C retail 
alcohol - temporary outdoor service. (September 23, 2023) 
f) The Brass Tap, 419 & 421 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service 
- temporary additional outdoor service. (September 23, 2023) 
g) Community Main Street (District Street Party), Main Street from 1st – 5th 
Streets and to alleys on East and West of Main on 2nd, 3rd and 4th Streets - 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

Special Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 5-day permit. (September 23 – 
27, 2023)  

 Motion carried unanimously.   

54447 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #23,295, approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to 

Owner's Statement and Deed of Dedication of West Viking Road Industrial Park 
Phase V. 

 Resolution #23,296, approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to 
Owner's Statement and Deed of Dedication of West Viking Road Industrial Park 
Phase VI. 

 Resolution #23,297, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to 
Enhance Economic Development in Cedar Falls by Supporting Grow Cedar 
Valley relative to an FY2024 Economic Development Grant. 

 Resolution #23,298, approving and authorizing execution of a Cultural 
Leadership Partners Program Operating Support Grant Agreement with the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority (IEDA) relative to Hearst Center cultural 
programs and operating expenses. 

 Resolution #23,299, approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of 
Agreement with the University of Northern Iowa (UNI) relative to fiberglass 
statues for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,300, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with 
Peters Construction Corporation for transporting, finishing and installing 
fiberglass statues relative to the Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,301, approving and authorizing execution of a HIPAA Business 
Associate Agreement with Wellworks For You relative to the City’s employee 
wellness program. 

 Resolution #23,302, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with 
Cedar Falls Police Protective Association for Installation of Plaques Honoring 
Reserve Officer Scott Sterrett relative to memorial markers along South Prairie 
Lakes Trail. 

 Resolution #23,303, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with 
Breanna Parker relative to providing hula hoop fitness classes at the Recreation 
Center. 

 Resolution #23,304, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with 
Spahn & Rose Lumber Co. relative to construction of a new shelter in Orchard 
Hill Park. 

 Resolution #23,305, approving an amendment to The Arbors Master Plan, to 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

allow some lots designated for bi-attached dwellings to be changed to single 
family lots. 

 Resolution #23,306, approving the amended preliminary plat for The Arbors Fifth, 
Sixth, and Seventh Addition.  

 Resolution #23,307, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Owen Contracting, Inc. for the 2022 Alley Reconstruction Project, and 
approving and authorizing the transfer of funds from the Storm Water Bond Fund 
to the Street Construction Fund. 

 Resolution #23,308, approving and authorizing execution of a License 
Agreement with Windstream Intellectual Property Services, LLC relative to 
installing a fiber optic telecommunications system within the public right-of-way 
along Main Street. 

 Resolution #23,309, setting September 18, 2023 as the date of public hearing to 
consider conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to KATZ Properties, LLC. 

  Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,295 through #23,309 duly passed and 
adopted. 

54448 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,310, 
approving and authorizing the Transfer of Funds from the General Fund to the 
Health Insurance Fund and Capital Projects Fund relative to the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2023, be adopted. Following a comment by Councilmember 
deBuhr, question by Gabe Groothuis, Cedar Falls, and responses by Finance & 
Business Operations Director Rodenbeck and City Administrator Gaines, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,310 
duly passed and adopted. 

54449 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Schultz that Resolution #23,311, 
approving and authorizing execution of First Amendment to the Agreement for 
Rotary Plaza with The Rotary Club of Cedar Falls relative to additional lighting for 
the Rotary Plaza being constructed at 205-221 West 1st Street, be adopted. 
Following questions by Councilmembers Harding, deBuhr and Schultz, and 
responses by Rotary member Mike Butler, Community Development Director 
Sheetz, and Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Harding, Sires, Dunn. Nay: deBuhr, Kruse. 
Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,311 duly passed and 
adopted. 

54450 -  It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Schultz that the bills and claims of 
September 5, 2023 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Sires, Dunn. Nay: 
None. Motion carried. 

 
54451 -     Public Works Director Schrage responded to a question by Councilmember Sires 

regarding the site distance at 1st Street and Union Road. 
    
54452 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:04 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
                                                           ________________________________ 
                                                           Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

9

Item 1.



 

                               MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613 

 
 

    
 

WHEREAS, under-representation of women in the political arena is an ongoing global 

concern, including in the United States; and 

WHEREAS, women have made great strides at the federal, state, and local level during 

the past century to claim the right of elected public service, making a tremendous 

positive difference for their communities, state, and nation; and 

WHEREAS, Victoria Woodhull, born on September 23, 1838, achieved lasting fame as 

the first woman to run for President in 1872 despite being unable to vote in the 

election herself and was voted into the Women’s Hall of Fame in 2001; and 

WHEREAS, it is fitting that the City of Cedar Falls recognize and celebrate the women 

in the political spotlight just as we recognize and celebrate the women working 

tirelessly behind the scenes in political advocacy, awareness, and education;  

NOW, THEREFORE I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby 

proclaim September 23, 2023 as  

WOMEN IN POLITICS DAY 

throughout the city, and I encourage residents to recognize and celebrate the women 

among us who have taken an active role in the political decision-making process; and I 

further encourage women of all ages to take an interest in political science through 

study and participation, in order to successfully advocate for topics of personal 

passion and concern.  

             

Signed this 12th day of September, 2023. 

_____ 

_________________________________    
   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 

10

Item 2.



    ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: September 8, 2023 

SUBJECT:       Industrial Park Property Conveyance: KATZ Properties, LLC 
  Location: 8,000 square feet of land, located just west of 6317 

Development Drive within the West Viking Road Industrial Park.  

 
 
Attached for your approval is a Resolution Approving and Authorizing Execution of a 
Quit Claim Deed Conveying Title to Certain Real Estate to KATZ Properties, LLC for the 
recently approved purchase of an 8,000 square foot area of land located behind the 
existing KATZ Properties, LLC property at 6317 Development drive, within the West 
Viking Road Industrial Park.  
 
The owner of KATZ Properties, LLC, Todd Miller, approached the City as the 
development of the industrial park expansion area began last year. Mr. Miller expressed 
an interest in acquiring some additional land behind his existing property, as there is an 
overhead door behind the existing building that is difficult to access due to the relatively 
narrow drive area behind the building. In order to allow additional room for truck 
maneuvering for deliveries in the back of the building, Mr. Miller would like to expand 
the vehicular use area in the back of the property, which will make access into and out 
of the rear of the building easier.  
 
The land area in question to be conveyed by the City to KATZ Properties, LLC is 200’ 
wide by 40’ deep, for a total of 8,000 square feet. The agreed upon purchase price for 
this area was $20,000, or $2.50 per square foot. This amount was agreed upon after 
taking into consideration the current development costs of this area, as well as the cost 
to the City to plat this outlot, which was included in the overall platting of this area last 
year. 
 
City Council approved an Offer to Buy Real Estate and Acceptance contract at its meeting 
on August 7, 2023, and this action would be to hold the public hearing to formally approve 
the conveyance of the property to KATZ Properties, LLC.  
 
 
 

11

Item 3.



RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt and approve the following: 
 
 1. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a quit claim deed 

conveying title to certain real estate from the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa to 
KATZ Properties, LLC. 

 
 
If you have any questions regarding the proposed sale, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 
         
        
 
 
 

12

Item 3.



Venture Way

Inn
ova

tio
n D

r

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
DrL&N

Transportation

¨
1 " = 100 '

KATZ Properties, LLC

20
0'

Land to be Conveyed
to KATZ Properties, LLC 40'

KATZ Properties, LLC
6317 Development Drive
8,000 sq. ft. Land Purchase

13

Item 3.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A QUIT 

CLAIM DEED CONVEYING TITLE TO CERTAIN REAL ESTATE FROM 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO KATZ PROPERTIES, LLC.  

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa adopted Resolution No. 23,267 on 

August 7, 2023 approving an Offer to Buy Real Estate and Acceptance for the sale of 8,000 square 

feet of city-owned property located adjacent to 6317 Development Drive to KATZ Properties, 

LLC, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, adopted Resolution No. 

23,309 on September 5, 2023, scheduling a hearing on the proposed conveyance of certain real 

estate to KATZ Properties, LLC, for September 18, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., and directing publication 

of notice of hearing on said proposed conveyance; and 

 

WHEREAS, notice was published as required by law; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed conveyance of said real estate having now 

been held; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interests of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, to approve the conveyance of the following city-owned land to KATZ Properties, LLC, an 

Iowa limited liability company: 

 

Outlot V, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V, City of Cedar Falls, 

Black Hawk County, Iowa (hereinafter the “Real Estate”), 

 

and to approve execution and delivery of a Quit Claim Deed conveying the Real Estate to KATZ 

Properties, LLC. 

 

14

Item 3.



 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA:  

 

1. That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to 

execute and deliver a Quit Claim Deed for the Real Estate, conveying title to the Real Estate to 

KATZ Properties, LLC, as Buyer, conditioned, however, on Buyer paying the purchase price for 

the Real Estate in the sum of $20,000.00, on the terms stated in the Offer to Buy Real Estate and 

Acceptance, all as approved by the City Attorney. 

 

 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this ________ day of _________________________, 2023. 

 

 

 

      _______________________________________ 

(SEAL)     Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

15

Item 3.



 
QUIT CLAIM DEED 

Recorder’s Cover Sheet 

 

Preparer Information: Kevin Rogers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone: (319) 

273-8600 

 

Taxpayer Information: Katz Properties, L.L.C., 6317 Development Drive, Cedar Falls, IA 

50613 

 

Return Document To: City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

 

Grantors: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

Grantees: Katz Properties, L.L.C. 

 

Legal Description:  See Page 2 

 

Document or instrument number of previously recorded documents:   
  

16

Item 3.



 

 

QUIT CLAIM DEED 

 

 For the consideration of One Dollar(s) and other valuable consideration, City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of Iowa, does hereby 

Quit Claim to Katz Properties, L.L.C., a limited liability company organized and existing under 

the laws of Iowa all our right, title, interest, estate, claim and demand in the following described 

real estate in Black Hawk County, Iowa: 

 

 

Outlot V, West Viking Road Industrial Park, Phase V, City of Cedar Falls, Black 

Hawk County, Iowa; subject to the conditions, covenants and restrictions 

contained in the Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by 

Cedar Falls City Council Resolution No. 8196 approved and adopted on 

November 12, 1990 (Ordinance No. 1923), amended a first time by Resolution 

No. 10,224 on November 13, 1995 (Ordinance No. 2122), amended a second time 

by Resolution No. 13,862 on November 17, 2003 (Ordinance No. 2461), amended 

a third time by Resolution No. 18,377  on December 10, 2012 (Ordinance No. 

2785), amended a fourth time by Resolution No. 19,263 on November 3, 2014, 

amended a fifth time by Resolution No. 19,963 on April 18, 2016, amended a 

sixth time by Resolution No. 21,079 on May 7, 2018 (Ordinance No. 2923), 

amended a seventh time by Resolution No. 21,368 on December 17, 2018 

(Ordinance No. 2953), and amended an eighth time by Resolution No. 22,205 on 

December 21, 2020, and further subject to restrictive covenants, ordinances and 

limited access provisions of record, if any, and to existing easements of record.   

 

There is no known private burial site, well, solid waste disposal site, underground 

storage tank, hazardous waste, or private sewage disposal system on the property 

as described in Iowa Code Section 558.69, and therefore the transaction is exempt 

from the requirement to submit a groundwater hazard statement. 

 

This deed is exempt according to Iowa Code 428A.2(6). 

 

 Each of the undersigned hereby relinquishes all rights of dower, homestead and distributive 

share in and to the real estate.  Words and phrases herein, including acknowledgment hereof, shall 

be construed as in the singular or plural number, and as masculine or feminine gender, according 

to the context. 

Dated:  __________________________. 

 

 

 

 

17

Item 3.



 

©The Iowa State Bar Association 2023 

IowaDocs® 

Form No. 106, Quit Claim Deed 

Revised June 2022 

 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, an Iowa municipal 

corporation 

By ____________________________________ 

Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

 

Attest: 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

 
This record was acknowledged before me on _________________________________, 

by Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, a municipal corporation. 
 

__________________________________ 

Signature of Notary Public 
 
 

18

Item 3.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: August 7, 2023  

 SUBJECT: Zoning Code Text Amendment – Parking for Civic/Institutional Uses in 

Downtown Character District (TA23-002) 

 

 
Background 
 

The City received an inquiry 

from St. Patrick Catholic 

Church about constructing a 

new parking lot on a property 

they recently acquired that is 

located on the north side of 

7th Street between 

Washington Street and Main 

Street.  The property is 

across Clay Street from St. 

Patrick’s School and across 

7th Street from St. Patrick’s 

Church. The school, church, 

and vacant property are located in the Urban General (UG) frontage area within the 

Downtown Character District. The property is currently vacant land with no buildings. 

Previously another church was located on the site but has since been demolished.  

St. Patrick’s would like to use the lot for parking but in the future may build a daycare or 

other building on the site. There are a couple of challenges the church has identified 

regarding future use of the property.  They have indicated that the 2-story minimum 

height requirement for a new building may be problematic, as they are only 

contemplating a 1-story daycare center in the future. Secondly, in most zoning districts, 

as is the case here, parking is not generally allowed without a principal use on the 

property and the location of parking is based on setback standards relative to the 

19

Item 4.



 
 

principal buildings and uses on the site. The question is whether civic and institutional 

uses should be treated differently as they are generally located on larger or contiguous 

parcels, as you can see in the image above for St. Patrick’s school and church, Lincoln 

Elementary and the Methodist Church. Also, is the 2-story minimum height standard in 

the UG, UG2, and Storefront areas of the Downtown Character District problematic, 

given the small size of many properties and parking requirements for upper story uses.   

Analysis 
 

Parking Location Standards 

The intent of the Urban General and Storefront frontages in the Downtown Character 

District is to encourage buildings to be built close to the street so that street frontages 

are lined with buildings to support a pedestrian-friendly, mixed-use district. To achieve 

that goal, the regulating plan for the Downtown Character District contains a build-to line 

at the fronts of lots indicating where buildings should be aligned along the street. The 

parking setback line in the Urban General, Urban General 2, and Storefront frontages is 

generally about 30 feet behind the build-to line (RBL) indicating where parking can be 

located.  Along the side streets (generally the numbered streets that run perpendicular 

to the mid-block alleys), there is an area where parking can be placed closer to the 

street if it is enclosed within a building. See an excerpt from the Downtown regulating 

plan below with the red lines indicating the build-to area and the blue line representing 

the parking setback line.  Parking can be located anywhere behind the blue lines.  

 

 

20

Item 4.



 
 

It should be noted that parking lots in all zoning districts must be set back from 

streetside lot lines and abutting properties and screened with trees and shrubs. 

Following is a list of the parking setback rules for various zoning districts:  

 In residential zoning districts no parking is allowed in the front yard (area 

between the principal buildings and the street), required front yard or required 

side yards.  Required side yards are generally 10% of the lot width. Required 

front yards in these zones: 

o R-1:    30 feet 

o R-2, R-3: 25 feet 

o R-4:    20 feet 

 MU – Mixed Use District: 30 feet from major streets, 20 feet from interior streets 

and accessways 

 HWY-1 Commercial District: 20 feet  

 C or M Districts: 5 feet, but 10 feet when abutting a residential district 

 

There are several civic and institutional uses in the Downtown Character District, 

including St. Patrick Church and School, First Methodist Church, First Presbyterian 

Church, and Lincoln Elementary School.  Civic and Institutional uses such as churches 

and schools are often designed with open spaces, parking areas, and playgrounds in a 

campus-like setting, which in the downtown area often involves multiple adjacent 

properties. While Civic Buildings as designated on the regulating plan and as defined in 

the code, are exempt from certain standards in the new Character District Code, there is 

no specific exemption for parking lots, particularly when located on a separate lot from 

the principal use.  

 
The intent of the Downtown Character District Code is to facilitate development that is 

consistent with the adopted Downtown Vision Plan. One of the major objectives of the 

Vision Plan is to encourage future development that helps preserve the character of the 

Downtown area.  Churches and schools and other institutional uses are important to the 

character and livability of the downtown neighborhoods. Since they operate differently 

than commercial or residential uses, different rules may be warranted, provided they 

ensure that surrounding residential properties and public areas such as parks and 

public sidewalks are buffered from vehicular areas and glare from lights.  

 

Minimum Building Height in the Downtown Character District 

The 2-story minimum building height standard in the UG, UG2, and Storefront Areas is 

intended to ensure a minimum building scale along downtown streets, similar to the 

main street character along the parkade. The minimum height encourages development 

that fully utilizes downtown sites and building up instead of spreading out preserves 

larger areas behind for needed parking. That being said, there are many small 

21

Item 4.



 
 

properties downtown where requiring a second story may require more parking than 

what is possible on the site, making redevelopment challenging. There are also sites 

where mixed-use, storefront-type development is not desired by the property owner, 

such as the case with many civic and institutional uses.  

 

Discussion of Solutions 

 

Minimum Building Height 

Staff have heard from several property owners that a second story would be challenging 

and was not within the anticipated scope of their project.  With such a small downtown 

area in Cedar Falls, the challenges of requiring a minimum building height may 

outweigh the benefits. Staff recommends eliminating the minimum height standard from 

the code. At the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on May 24, the 

Commission expressed concern about eliminating the 2-story minimum height 

requirement in all cases and recommended either leaving the code as is or 

coming up with an exception process whereby waiver of the second story could 

be considered on a case-by-case basis based on specific standards. Staff agreed 

to bring back some ideas at a later date for consideration.   

 

Parking Location Standards 

To provide more flexibility for civic and institutional uses in the Downtown Character 

District, staff suggests consideration of creating a special rule that would allow parking 

to be located forward of the parking setback line on the regulating plan, but with certain 

conditions that would ensure that parking areas are buffered and screened with 

landscaping and trees from public sidewalks and abutting properties. The following 

language is provided for consideration:  

 

On lots owned by and used for an allowed Civic or Institutional Use, parking 
may be located forward of the parking setback line, provided that:  

1. The parking area is on a lot that contains the subject Institutional or 
Civic Use or directly abuts or is across the street or alley from the Civic 
or Institutional Use;  

2. The parking area is setback a minimum of 10’ from any streetside lot 
line and parking setbacks from common lot lines according to the 
requirements of code shall apply;  

3. The parking area shall be landscaped according to the standards in 
Section 26-220(i), General landscaping of parking within all districts; 

4. If the lot shares a common lot line with a Neighborhood Small or 
Medium frontage lot, or a lot in a R-1 or R-2 District, the parking lot 
shall be set back a minimum of 5 feet from the common lot line and 
screened according to the standards in Section 26-220(i), General 
landscaping of parking areas within all districts.  

22

Item 4.



 
 

5. When a principal building is constructed on the site, the building must 
meet all standards and requirements, as applicable.      

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  

 

After a public hearing on June 14, 2023 meeting, on a vote of 2-5, the Planning and 

Zoning Commission denied TA23-002, proposed zoning code text amendments to the 

parking setback requirements for civic and institutional uses in the Downtown Character 

District.  

 

Therefore, approval will require a 2/3rd majority vote of City Council.       

 
(Note: Per direction of the Planning and Zoning Commission, discussions about 

amending the minimum height standards were postponed until a later date to allow time 

for staff to develop some alternative language for consideration).  

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
 

Discussion 
5/24/2023 

 
Commission moved to the next item, a zoning code text amendment regarding 
parking and minimum building height for institutional uses in CD-DT. Chair 
Lynch introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background information. 
She explained that the discussion was prompted by an inquiry from St. Patrick’s 
Church about using a vacant lot for a surface parking lot. The property is in the 
Urban General Frontage of the Downtown Character District. She noted that the 
church indicated that sometime in the future they may build a new daycare on 
the site but for now would like to use the entirety of the lot for parking. She 
noted that accessory uses, such as parking, are not allowed without a principal 
use in any zone in the City with a few exceptions. She noted that parking area 
setbacks in most zones are relative to the principal buildings on the site. Also, 
the two-story minimum building height in the UG, UG2 and Storefront areas 
may be problematic as well. Ms. Howard displayed an image of an excerpt of 
the downtown regulating plan to demonstrate how parking setback areas are 
delineated on the Downtown Character District Regulating Plan.  She discussed 
parking setbacks in other zoning districts as a comparison to the Downtown 
Character District code. She noted that the question is whether there should be 
some additional flexibility for parking for civic/institutional uses in the Downtown 
Character District to allow parking forward of the parking setback lines on the 
regulating plan. She noted that there are a number of churches and schools in 
the Downtown Character District with campus-like settings that extend over 
multiple properties. She noted that institutional uses are important to the 
character of the neighborhood and this may warrant different rules, but it is 
important to ensure surrounding development is respected. This might be 
achieved by creating a landscaped buffer between parking areas and public 
sidewalks and adjacent properties. She also discussed the pros and cons of the 
minimum two-story height standard and spoke about solutions that could allow 

23

Item 4.



 
 

for more flexibility for Civic and Institutional uses. At this time the item will be for 
discussion by the Commission. 
 
Mr. Larson made a motion to set a public hearing for the June 14, 2023 
meeting. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. Leeper stated that he struggles with this request and is concerned about 
making all sorts of exceptions to the rules in the new code.  He feels it sets a 
bad precedent.  
 
Mr. Larson likes the points of challenge with the new code as they give an 
opportunity to consider all options, but he also feels that after going through the 
exhaustive process of creating the zoning code that it’s important to stick to it. 
He believes that the parking matter, regardless of how you feel about it, drives 
the building height situation. He also feels that public/non-profit and private 
development sectors should follow the same rules. 
 
Ms. Crisman feels that the whole vibe of the downtown area is the character of 
density so starting to make exceptions will undo that. She would like to stay with 
the current rules and let them work as they are. 
 
Ms. Lynch agreed with the previous sentiments.  
 
Mr. Larson asked about potentially coming up with a formula for height 
exceptions to allow for consideration of individual projects based on the size of 
the site being considered. 
 
After further discussion, Mr. Larson revised his motion to set the date for a 
public hearing for the parking amendments only and to leave the question of 
minimum height until a later date. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Alberhasky, Crisman, 
Grybovych, Larson, Leeper, Lynch and Stalnaker), and 0 nays.  

24

Item 4.



 
 

 
Discussion 
6/14/2023 

 
The first item of business was a zoning text amendment regarding parking for 
institutional uses in CD-DT. Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Ms. 
Howard provided background information. She explained that the item was 
presented at the last meeting and gave a brief recap of the information. An 
inquiry from St. Patrick’s about using a vacant lot for a surface parking lot 
prompted the discussion as the property is in the Urban General Frontage of 
the Downtown Character District. They may build a new daycare building in the 
future. The accessory uses, such as parking, are not allowed without a principal 
use. Parking setback in most zones is relative to the principal buildings on the 
site. The question becomes whether parking for civic and institutional uses be 
treated differently. Urban General encourages buildings close to the street with 
parking located behind to create a pedestrian-friendly mixed-use district. The 
parking setback from the street is about 30 feet in this zoning district. Allowance 
can be made for additional area along side streets if it is behind a building wall, 
such as in a garage or in a parking facility. She provided examples of parking 
setbacks in other zoning districts.  
 
Ms. Howard explained that there are a number of churches and schools in the 
Downtown Character District with campus-like settings on multiple properties. 
Institutional uses are important to the character of the neighborhood and may 
warrant different rules, but it is also important to ensure surrounding 
development is respected. Buffering parking areas from public sidewalks and 
adjacent properties would help to do that. She discussed the solutions that were 
discussed at the previous meeting that would allow for more flexibility for civic 
and institutional uses. Staff recommends allowing more flexibility for these types 
of uses and creating a special rule that would allow parking forward of the 
parking setback line with the conditions outlined in the staff report and/or with 
any modifications or additional comments from the Commission. 
 
Paul Dimarco, 1707 E. Bremer Avenue, Waverly, spoke as a parishioner of St. 
Patrick’s. He discussed different projects that he has been a part of with the 
church and asked the Commission to consider support for the proposed zoning 
changes. He thanked staff and the Commission for all their work and support of 
the community. He believes the additional parking would assist in reducing 
parking needs and loads on the neighbors, as well as Main Street events.  
 
Mr. Larson feels it makes sense but still has concerns about a different set of 
rules for civic and institutional uses.  
 
Mr. Leeper feels that the timing is a challenge as the code was just updated and 
this is the first project coming through. To make a change right away doesn’t 
allow the code a chance to work as it has been laid out. 
 
Ms. Crisman agreed to their sentiments, stating that while one location might 
need the additional space, it doesn’t mean that all of the other locations will 
need the additional parking. If the rules are changed, it would be allowed for all 
of them. She would prefer not to change the code. 
 
Mr. Larson asked about the possibility of a variance. Ms. Howard explained that 
anyone has a right to request a variance, but the bar is set high to show that 

25

Item 4.



 
 

you don’t have any use of the property because of zoning rules. It would be 
difficult to meet a variance standard in this case. 
 
Ms. Crisman asked if the property was included in the parking study. Ms. 
Howard was uncertain but believed it was outside the area of the downtown 
study.  
 
Ms. Crisman made a motion to approve the item as recommended. Mr. Larson 
seconded the motion. The motion was denied with 2 ayes (Alberhasky and 
Hartley), and 5 nays (Crisman, Larson, Leeper, Moser and Stalnaker). 
 

 

26

Item 4.



Prepared by: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, 
Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 268-5169 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3041 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PARAGRAPH 26-193.1A.6., ON-SITE/OFF-
STREET VEHICLE PARKING AND ACCESS, AND ALSO ADDING 
ASSOCIATED CROSS-REFERENCES THROUGH-OUT SECTION 26-193, 
BUILDING FORM STANDARDS, OF DIVISION 2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF 
ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 26, 
ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA TO ADD AN EXCEPTION TO THE PARKING SETBACK 
REQUIREMENTS FOR CIVIC AND INSTITUTIONAL USES IN THE 
DOWNTOWN CHARACTER DISTRICT.  

 
WHEREAS, paragraph 26-193.1A.6 of the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, sets forth 

certain standards for on-site/off-street vehicle parking and access in the Downtown Character 
District; and  

 
WHEREAS, there are certain exceptions listed to the parking setback requirements within 

said paragraph to provide flexibility in certain circumstances and under certain conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered a request to amend this 

paragraph to add an exception that would allow parking to be located forward of the parking 
setback line for Civic and Institutional Uses in the Downtown Character District, provided certain 
conditions are met; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of this request in 

order to better preserve the pedestrian-oriented intent of the district and to encourage downtown 
properties to be used primarily for active building uses; and  

 
WHEREAS, at least a 2/3rd majority of the City Council deems it in the best interest of the 

community to approve the proposed amendments despite the Planning and Zoning 
Commission’s disapproval; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

Section 1: Paragraph 26-193.1A.6c., On-Site/Off-Street Vehicle Parking and Access, within 
Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, 
Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended to 
add a new subparagraph (iii), as follows:  
 

(iii).  On lots owned by and used for a permitted Civic or Institutional Use, parking may be located 
forward of the parking setback line, provided that:  
(a) The parking area is on a lot that contains the subject Civic or Institutional Use or directly 

abuts or is across the street or alley from the subject Civic or Institutional Use; and 
(b) The parking area is set back a minimum of ten (10) feet from any streetside lot line. This 

streetside setback area shall be used for landscape screening and trees; screening shrubs 
shall be minimum 18 inches in height at planting and spaced appropriately to form at 

27

Item 4.



maturity a continuous, effective visual screen 3 to 4 feet in height to provide a buffer 
between the parking area and the STREET SPACE. In addition, canopy shade trees meeting 
the standards in Section 26-195.4F, Street Tree Specifications, shall be planted at an 
average spacing not greater than 50 feet on center within the streetside setback area; and 

(c) If the lot is located on a Neighborhood Small or Neighborhood Medium frontage lot or 
shares a common lot line with a Neighborhood Small or Neighborhood Medium frontage lot 
or shares a common lot line with a lot in an R-1 or R-2 District, the parking area shall be 
set back a minimum of 5 feet from any common lot line and screened with shrubs to form a 
continuous, effective visual screen as specified in paragraph (b) above; and 

(d) The parking complies with the vision triangle restrictions in Section 26-220(e)(7); and  
(e) When a principal building is constructed on the site, the building must be constructed 

according to the regulating plan and meet all standards and requirements, as applicable. 
 

Section 2: Paragraph 26-193.2F.4., Rear Lot Area, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of 
Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended to add a new paragraph c., 
as follows:  
  
 c. See also additional parking location exceptions specified in 26.193.1A.6.  

 

Section 3: Paragraph 26-193.4F.3., Rear Lot Area, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of 
Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended to add a new paragraph c., 
as follows:  
  
 c. See also additional parking location exceptions specified in 26.193.1A.6.  

 

Section 4: Paragraph 26-193.5E.3., Rear Lot Area, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of 
Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended to add a new paragraph c., 
as follows:  
  
 c. See also additional parking location exceptions specified in 26.193.1A.6.  

 
 

INTRODUCED:     August 21, 2023   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   August 21, 2023   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   September 5, 2023   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:        

ADOPTED:           

 
 

____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

28

Item 4.



29

Item 4.



TV

7.
5'

100'0

SCALE 1"=100'

N

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

CGA

J:\23-DS-0012\dwgs\3_ Exhibits\23-DS-0012 - EX.02.dwg - EX.02A -  07-24-23 - 2:58pm
 - ACD276

Saint Patrick
Campus Exhibit  7/24/23

W 7th St

W 6th St

W 8th St

M
ai

n 
S

t

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

S
t

C
la

y 
S

t

S
ta

te
 S

t

Elementary
and Middle
School Area

Church, Commons,
Gym and  Office Area

Preschool and
Child Care

Area

Parking

30

Item 4.



31

Item 4.



32

Item 4.



201 Washington Street, Cedar Falls, IA
t. 319-260-2016
structurecedarvalley.com

To whom it may concern,

I am in favor of our city council considering some small alterations to the downtown form-based code.  
While those involved in the form based code did a wonderful job (in my opinion), I believe that code is not 
and will not be perfect for any and all situations.  I don't think that an amendment to the newly adopted code 
should be a concern, but just that the code is imperfect and incapable of encompassing every situation. 
I would take the stance that institutional and educational entities and campuses should be heard when 
expansion to adjacent parcels is needed and possible. 

 

Respectfully,

Brian Wingert
Structure Real Estate, Partner
201 Washington St
Cedar Falls, IA

33

Item 4.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, AICP, Planner I 

 DATE: August 21, 2023  

 SUBJECT: Text Amendment – Establishment of Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission 
(Proposed Ordinance and Bylaws) 

 

 
INTRODUCTION 
Since as far back as their 2016 annual report, one of the priority recommendations of the 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee has been to elevate the committee to a standing 
commission.  This recommendation has been noted by the Mayor and Council and was 
considered at the most recent goal-setting where staff was directed to prepare the proposal 
for Council’s formal consideration. In collaboration with different departments, with the City 
Attorney, and with the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee, staff has prepared a code 
amendment and bylaws which are included as attachments to this memo. 
 
BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
The Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee functions as an ad hoc committee and the 
current iteration of the committee was initially established by Mayor Jon Crews in 2009. It has 
no formal bylaws and is not established by code. As such, there has been some confusion 
regarding appointment of members or term of membership, with some members being 
appointed by a Mayor without any defined term of service or formal approval by Council. In 
some regards, it has functioned as a volunteer committee. Since they often consider and 
provide recommendations relating to public interest such as infrastructure and policy, City 
staff has been treating them no different than a board or commission: providing staff 
resources, publishing agendas and minutes, meeting monthly, and generally abiding by open 
meeting laws. However, they are listed separate from boards or commissions on our website, 
and perhaps have been more akin to a task force in their official capacity. 
 
The responsibilities and contributions of the committee have been invaluable in increasing 
the usability of our infrastructure and facilities over the years. The execution of these duties 
has also led to: 

 Greater education for the community; 

 Broader promotion of our excellent recreational amenities; 

 Staff awareness of practical issues with facilities or infrastructure; and 

 Notable improvements to our bicycle and pedestrian networks. 
 

34

Item 5.



While the knowledge and experience of the current membership of the committee already 
lends credibility to their recommendations, the primary advantage to formalizing a 
commission is that the Mayor can recommend  members, and the Council can review and 
appoint persons to the commission with well-defined terms of service, a proper defined scope 
of responsibility, and expectations typical of all who serve on our boards and commissions. 
The hope of the committee is to not only be made “official,” but to raise the perceived 
credibility of their recommendations by giving elected officials a say in the make-up of this 
new commission. 
 
PROPOSED ORDINANCE & BYLAWS 
The proposed ordinance and bylaws were modeled after standard language contained in the 
existing ordinances and bylaws governing other boards and commissions at the City. The 
specific provisions meriting deeper consideration are the powers and duties granted or 
delegated to the Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission by Council. Each power and duty is 
outlined below with some brief discussion of the implications of each. 
 

a) To adopt rules governing the commission's organization and procedure as may be 
deemed necessary. 
 
This is standard language which grants the right to adopt bylaws and make changes to 
them by vote of the commission. Bylaws cannot conflict with the ordinance or other 
applicable laws but in every other respect a board or commission may update or adopt 
bylaws that guide and govern how the board or commission operates. 
  

b) To develop and provide resources and events to educate citizens and promote safety 
and well-being for pedestrians, cyclists, and users of other active transportation 
modes. 
 
The committee has been involved in articles for the Courier, articles for Currents, 
content for Channel 15, and educational events during May Bike Month and at 
elementary schools. The commission will be expected to continue these efforts. 
 

c) To enhance the economic development of the city by promoting the practical and 
recreational utility of the Cedar Falls pedestrian and bicycle networks. 
 
The remarkable extent of our trail network has long been an important piece of 
attracting people to the city. In that vein, greater use by those that live here and 
greater discovery by those that visit has been a strong goal of the committee. The 
commission will be expected to continue that promotion especially with inclusion along 
the Great American Rail Trail and events such as the Des Moines Register's Annual 
Great Bicycle Ride Across Iowa (RAGBRAI). 
 

d) To provide feedback and recommendations to the City Engineer regarding the usability 
and condition of current and proposed active transportation infrastructure and 
networks. 
 
This is a very practical role filled by the committee where staff is made aware of issues 
and problems as they arise. The committee has also played an important role in the 
review and refinement of planned routes for construction/reconstruction in the City’s 

35

Item 5.



Capital Improvements Program (CIP) and within new subdivisions as they are being 
considered for approval. The commission will be expected to continue that effort as 
solicited by City Staff for all modes of active transportation, including both walking and 
biking. 
 

e) To review and recommend to the City policies, programs, rules, and regulations 
related to active transportation modes. Also identify opportunities to seek recognition 
on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls for the exceptional aspects of the City’s active 
transportation network. 
 
The committee has provided recommendations to Staff and Council regarding how we 
should regulate the use of ebikes. They have also provided feedback regarding 
scooter companies seeking to operate in Cedar Falls. As the landscape for active 
transportation modes changes, so too will policies, programs, rules, and regulations. 
The commission will be expected to review and provide recommendations as new 
issues and questions arise. As for opportunities to seek recognition, they will be 
expected to continue the efforts in applying for our Bicycle Friendly Community status 
among other designations that the City may qualify for. These designations make the 
city more aware of common best practices and typically come with recommendations 
of how to improve and upgrade our status. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee reviewed and discussed the proposed code 
language and bylaws at their August 1st meeting and unanimously requests approval of the 
ordinance amendment establishing the proposed commission. Once applications for the new 
Commission have been reviewed and members have been appointed, this will effectively 
dissolve the committee as currently constituted. 
 

 
 
Attachments:   Proposed Ordinance 
  Proposed Bylaws 
 

  

 

36

Item 5.



Prepared by: Chris Sevy, Planner I, Community Development Department, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar 
Falls, Iowa (319) 268-5180 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3042 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE IV, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS, OF 
CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO CREATE A NEW BICYCLE AND 
PEDESTRIAN COMMISSION AND ESTABLISH THE REGULATIONS AND 
POWERS AND DUTIES FOR SAID COMMISSION. 

 
WHEREAS, one of the annual priority recommendations of the Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Advisory Committee has long been to elevate the ad hoc committee to a standing commission; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the role of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee has been akin to 
that of other boards and commissions often considering and providing recommendations 
relating to public interest; and  

 
WHEREAS, the process of appointment and term of membership for the Bicycle and 

Pedestrian Advisory Committee has never been codified; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee has reviewed the proposed 

amendment and unanimously recommends approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the community to create a new 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

 

Section 1: Paragraph 2-277, Information to be provided to mayor and council, within Division 
1, Generally, of Article IV, Boards and Commissions, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended to add a new 
subparagraph (19), as follows:  
 

(19)  Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission  
 

Section 2: Article IV, Boards and Commissions, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended to add a new Division 7, 
entitled, Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission, which shall include Sections 2-460 through 2-
466 (previously reserved), as follows: 
 

DIVISION 7. Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission 
 
Sec. 2-460. Created. 
 

There is hereby established in the city a bicycle and pedestrian commission.  
 

37

Item 5.



Sec. 2-461. Powers and duties. 
 

The powers and duties of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission are as follows: 
 

(a) To adopt rules governing the commission's organization and procedure as may 
be deemed necessary. 
 

(b) To develop and provide resources and events to educate citizens and promote 
safety and well-being for pedestrians, cyclists, and users of other active 
transportation modes. 
 

(c) To enhance the economic development of the city by promoting the practical 
and recreational utility of the Cedar Falls pedestrian and bicycle networks. 
 

(d) To provide feedback and recommendations to the City Engineer regarding the 
usability and condition of current and proposed active transportation 
infrastructure and networks. 
 

(e) To review and recommend to the City policies, programs, rules, and 
regulations related to active transportation modes. Also identify opportunities to 
seek recognition on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls for the exceptional 
aspects of the City’s active transportation network. 
 

Sec. 2-462. Appointment of members; term of office. 
 

(a) The Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission shall be comprised of seven members 
at least 18 years of age who shall be residents of the city. 
 

(b) The members shall be qualified by general knowledge or experience in matters 
related to active transportation. 
 

(c) Members shall not hold any elective position in the city. 
 

(d) The members shall be appointed by the mayor, subject to approval of the city 
council. 
 

(e) The term of office of the members of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission 
shall be four (4) years, however, when the Commission is initially established, 
terms shall be staggered so that no more than three (3) members’ terms expire 
each year. Any vacancy occurring on the Commission shall be filled by 
appointment by the Mayor, with approval of the City Council, for the unexpired 
term. 
 

(f) An effort shall be made to appoint members to the commission who represent 
various active transportation modes, prioritizing a balance of pedestrian 
interests with those of cyclists, and also backgrounds representing the 
community at-large. 

 
Sec. 2-463. Compensation of commissioners. 
 

38

Item 5.



The Bicycle and Pedestrian Commissioners shall serve without compensation.  
 
Sec. 2-464. Chairperson; Vice-Chairperson 

 
The commission shall elect a chairperson and vice-chairperson from among its 
members to serve one-year terms.   

 
Sec. 2-465. Record of meetings 

 
The Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission shall keep a record of all its meetings, which 
record shall be permanent and kept up to date.  

 
 Sec. 2-466. Annual report. 

 
After the close of the calendar year, the Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission shall 
make an annual report to the city council of its proceedings, the progress of its work 
over the prior year, and the attendance of its members.  

 

INTRODUCED:     August 21, 2023   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   August 21, 2023   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   September 5, 2023   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:        

ADOPTED:           

 
 

____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

39

Item 5.



 Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission By-Laws 
 

BY-LAWS OF THE 

CEDAR FALLS BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN 

COMMISSION 

 
 

ARTICLE I. Name 

The Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission is the advisory body that works with staff and the 

Cedar Falls City Council to improve the experience of pedestrians and cyclists in the community. 

 

ARTICLE II. Mission 

The mission of the Commission is to improve the quality of life, general health, safety, and welfare in 

Cedar Falls through the increased opportunity for safe walking, bicycling, and other active modes as 

viable means of transportation and physical and recreational activity. 

 

ARTICLE III. Powers and Duties 

The powers and duties of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission are provided for in Section 2-455 of 

the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances. 
 

ARTICLE IV. Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission 

Section 1 Membership of the commission; appointment of members. 

 

The number of members and the appointment thereof shall be as provided for in Section 2-456 of 

the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances. 

 

Section 2 Term of office of commission members. 

 

The term of office of the members of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission shall be as 

provided for in Section 2-456 of the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances. 

 

Section 3 Training 

 

From time to time, commissioners may identify training opportunities the City may consider 

funding. Requests shall be made in advance to the Director of Community Development or 

their designee and will be approved as the Community Development budget allows. 

 

Section 4 Absence of members from commission meetings. 

 

Regular attendance by Commission members shall be expected at all Commission meetings. 

Excessive absences shall be a basis for the Commission Chair to recommend to the Mayor that 

the seat be vacated and a new appointment be made for the unexpired term. 

 

Excessive absences shall be more than three (3) meetings with or without excuses or explanation 

in a calendar year. 

 

Section 5 Ex Officio Members. 

 

a) Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments shall be invited to appoint a 

representative of its organization to serve as an Ex Officio member of the Cedar Falls Bicycle 

and Pedestrian Commission. 
40

Item 5.



 Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission By-Laws 
 

 

b) Cedar Valley Cyclists shall be invited to appoint a representative of its organization to 

serve as an Ex Officio member of the Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission. 

 

c) The Cedar Valley Association for Soft Trails shall be invited to appoint a representative of 

its organization to serve as an Ex Officio member of the Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Commission. 

 

d) The Cedar Falls School District shall be invited to appoint a representative of its 

organization to serve as an Ex Officio member of the Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Commission. 

 

e) The Cedar Valley Bicycle Collective shall be invited to appoint a representative of its 

organization to serve as an Ex Officio member of the Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Commission. 

 

f) Ex Officio representatives shall be appointed by their respective organizations in 

December, or when positions are vacant, with terms commencing the following January 1, 

and continuing until their successors are appointed by their respective organizations. Ex 

Officio members shall serve on the Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission without voting 

privileges. 

 

Section 6 Officers 

 

a) The officers of the Commission shall consist of a Chairperson and a Vice-Chairperson, 

who shall be elected at the December meeting each year, with their term of office 

commencing the following January 1, and continuing for one (1) year or until their 

successors are elected, and the Chairperson may not serve more than two terms 

consecutively. A nominating committee consisting of two (2) members not currently holding 

office shall be appointed by the Chairperson at the October meeting each year. The 

Committee shall report the names of its nominees for officers at the November meeting each 

year. 

 

b) The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the commission, work closely with City 

staff, be a public spokesperson for the commission and generally perform all duties associated 

with that office. The Chairperson is encouraged to serve two consecutive terms, particularly 

where they have just completed their first and only term. 

 

c) In the event of the absence or disability of the Chairperson, or of a vacancy in that office, the 

Vice-Chairperson shall assume and perform the duties and functions of the Chairperson.  

 

d) The Community Development Director or their designee shall be responsible for 

recording minutes of all meetings. 

 

ARTICLE V. Meetings 

Section 1 Regular meetings of the commission shall be held monthly, generally on the first 

Tuesday of the month at 5:15 p.m. provided there is business to be transacted. 

 

Section 2 Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson or at the request of four 

commission members during a regularly scheduled meeting, for the transaction of 

business as stated in the notice of the special meeting. All members shall be notified 
41

Item 5.



 Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission By-Laws 
 

in writing of such meetings in accordance with Section 7 of this Article. The 

conduct of special meetings shall follow all regular meeting requirements. 

 

Section 3 A quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the commission shall 

consist of a majority of all voting members of the commission, present in person, 

unless otherwise provided by State or local proclamation. Voting by proxy shall not 

be allowed. 

 

Section 4 Unless otherwise specified by law or these by-laws, motions may be passed by 

simple majority vote of the quorum. 

 

Section 5 Except as otherwise provided for in these By-laws, proceedings of all meetings shall 

be governed by the latest edition of “Robert’s Rules of Order.” 

 

Section 6 A record of all commission meetings and committee meetings shall be kept. 

Agendas and Minutes of the commission meetings shall be submitted to the Cedar 

Falls City Clerk to maintain public records of the commission. 

 

Section 7 Notice of and agenda for each commission meeting shall be given as provided by 

law. Notice of, and agenda for, each regular meeting of the commission, shall be 

emailed to each commission member at least three (3) days in advance of the date of 

the meeting. 

 

Section 8 All meetings shall be open to the public and notice thereof shall be posted as 

required by law, including at City Hall and on the electronic City Calendar. 

 

ARTICLE VI. Committees 

The commission shall have the authority by majority vote of the quorum to establish committees as 

it deems necessary from time to time to accomplish specific tasks outside of regular meetings and 

reviews. These tasks may include event planning and execution, community education efforts, 

assessment and inventory of current infrastructure, applications for community recognition, and any 

other applicable tasks that further the mission of the commission. These committees may be 

comprised of no more than three voting members of the Commission who may also solicit the help 

of additional persons who are not on the commission, but committees shall be comprised of at least 

one voting member of the commission. All members of each committee shall be appointed by the 

Chairperson and confirmed by majority vote of the quorum. Committees shall make 

recommendations to the commission for action but shall not take action themselves, except as 

specifically authorized by the commission. 

 

 

ARTICLE VII. Review of By-Laws 

Any changes to the by-laws shall require a majority vote of the entire voting membership of the board. 

 

42

Item 5.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: September 5, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:   Updates to City Code Section 23-374 – Parking Prohibited on Specific Streets 
   And  
   Updates to City Code Section 23-379 – Limited Parking on Specific Streets 
 
The no parking ordinance on University Avenue frontage road north of University Avenue 
(Dakota Street) from W. 31st Street to its westerly terminus currently exists on both the northerly 
and southerly sides of the street. UNI has requested to allow limited parking on the northerly 
side of the street. This would allow students to park on the street to attend classes held at the 
UNI owned house located at 8712 University Ave. (frontage road). The southerly side of the 
street within these same limits would remain no parking.    
 
The Engineering Division is recommending that the current no parking that exists on the 
northerly side of University Avenue frontage road (Dakota Street) from 31st Street to its western 
terminus be allowed for a duration of two hours. This will allow students to park on the street 
for the duration of scheduled classes.    
 
The Engineering Division is proposing changes to (1) City Code Section 23-374 – Parking 
Prohibited on Specific Streets to remove the no parking on the northerly side of the frontage 
road; and (2) City Code Section 23-379 – Limited Parking on Specific Streets to allow for limited 
parking so the code will match the proposed limits of the parking request along the frontage 
road. Please see the attached changes to City Code Section 23-374 – Parking Prohibited on 
Specific Streets and City Code Section 23-379 – Limited Parking on Specific Streets. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approval to set the 
newly defined area to allow limited on-street parking. This area is shown on the attached 
exhibit.    
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

 
 
    

43

Item 6.



44

Item 6.

WickeD
Arc

WickeD
Line

WickeD
Arrow

WickeD
Arc

WickeD
Line

WickeD
Stamp

WickeD
Arrow

WickeD
Line

WickeD
Snapshot



 

 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 23-374. Parking prohibited on specific streets. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle at any time upon any of the streets or 
portions of streets enumerated in this section.  

Street  Portion Where  
Parking Prohibited  

Frontage roads along the 
north side of University 
Avenue 

On both sides of said frontage road from the east curb line of Valley Park Drive 
east to the end of said frontage road at the entrance to the Holiday Inn Motel. 

 On the south side of the frontage road (Dakota Street) from the south curb line 
of West 31st Street (UNI Institutional Road), west to the end of said frontage 
road (Dakota Street). On both sides of frontage road from the west curb line of 
Ohio Street (UNI Institutional Road) west to the east curb line of Hudson Road. 

 On both sides of the frontage road along the north side of University Avenue 
between Main Street and Tremont Street, from the most westerly curb cut on 
said frontage road, west to the end of said frontage road. 

(Ord. No. 2945, § 2, 6-17-2019; Ord. No. 2991, §§ 1, 2, 6-7-2021; Ord. No. 3013, § 1, 7-18-2022; Ord. No. 3017, § 
1, 10-3-2022)  

Sec. 23-379. Limited parking on specific streets. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle on the following streets or portions of 
streets for a period longer than the time limit specified in this section.  

Street  Portion Where  
Parking Prohibited  

Frontage roads along the 
north side of University 
Avenue 

On the north side of the frontage road (Dakota Street) from 35 feet southwest 
of the south curb line of West 31st Street (UNI Institutional Road), west to the 
end of said frontage road (Dakota Street), parking shall be limited to a 2-hour 
period.  

(Ord. No. 2962, § 1, 2-3-2020) 

 

45

Item 6.



 
 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 3043 

 
AN ORDINANCE (1) AMENDING SECTION 23-374, PARKING PROHIBITED 
ON SPECIFIC STREETS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, 
STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY STRIKING THE UNNUMBERED SUBSECTION 
ENTITLED “FRONTAGE ROADS ALONG THE NORTH SIDE OF 
UNIVERSITY AVENUE” , AND ENACTING A NEW UNNUMBERED 
SUBSECTION OF THE SAME TITLE; AND (2) AMENDING SECTION 23-379, 
LIMITED PARKING ON SPECIFIC STREETS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, 
OF ARTICLE IV, STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, OF CHAPTER 23, 
TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA,  BY ADDING A NEW UNNUMBERED 
SUBSECTION ENTITLED “FRONTAGE ROADS ALONG THE NORTH SIDE 
OF UNIVERSITY AVENUE” ALLOWING LIMITED PARKING ON PORTIONS 
OF THE FRONTAGE ROAD (DAKOTA STREET) ALONG THE NORTH SIDE 
OF UNIVERSITY AVENUE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1. The unnumbered subsection entitled “Frontage roads along the north side 
of University Avenue” in Section 23-374, Parking Prohibited on Specific Streets, of 
Division 1, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, 
Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new unnumbered subsection of the same title is 
enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 
 

Street Portion Where Parking Prohibited 

Frontage roads along 
the north side of 
University Avenue 

On both sides of said frontage road from the east curb 
line of Valley Park Drive east to the end of said frontage 
road at the entrance to the Holiday Inn Motel. 

 On the south side of the frontage road (Dakota Street) 
from the south curb line of West 31st Street (UNI 
Institutional Road), west to the end of said frontage 
road (Dakota Street.)  

On both sides of the frontage road along the north side 
of University Avenue between Main Street and Tremont 
Street, from the most westerly curb cut on said frontage 
road, west to the end of said frontage road. 

 

46

Item 6.



2 

 

Section 2.  Section 23-379, Limited parking on specific streets, of Division 1, 
Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and 
Motor Vehicles, is hereby amended by adding a new unnumbered subsection, entitled 
“Frontage roads along the north side of University Avenue”, as follows: 
 

Street Portion Where Parking Prohibited 

Frontage roads along the 
north side of University 
Avenue 

On the north side of the frontage road (Dakota Street) 
from 35 feet southwest of the south curb line of West 
31st Street (UNI Institutional Road), west to the end of 
said frontage road (Dakota Street), parking shall be 
limited to a 2-hour period  

 
 
INTRODUCED:     August 21, 2023  
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   August 21, 2023  
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:   September 5, 2023  
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:       
 
ADOPTED:          
 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

47

Item 6.



 
MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

City Hall, 220 Clay Street 
September 5, 2023 

 
The meeting of Standing Committees met at City Hall at 6:15 p.m. on September 5, 2023, with 
the following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers present: Susan deBuhr, Kelly 
Dunn, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires. Councilmembers absent: 
Dustin Ganfield. Staff members from all City Departments and members of the community 
attended in person.   
 
Community Development Committee:  
Chair Harding called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Community 
Development Committee Agenda, Future Forward Cedar Falls 2025: Community Wide Strategic 
Plan and introduced Community Development Director Stephanie Sheetz. Director Sheetz gave 
an overview of the Strategic Plan and its purpose and an implementation update on 8 out of 37 
objectives. In conclusion, Staff recommends discussing various planning projects at goal 
setting, including visioning and zoning for various neighborhood areas, major thoroughfare plan 
review/adoption, a new parks master plan, and revisiting the comprehensive and strategic plan 
after those are completed. Councilmembers discussed areas of the plan that should be focused 
on during goal setting and questioned if this was the first plan. Director Sheetz clarified plans of 
this type have been discussed about every 5 years.  
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Shianne Bellinger, Administrative Assistant 

 

48

Item 7.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  September 11, 2023 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that would 
prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Escapology Cedar Falls, 2518 Melrose Drive, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 

b) Holiday Inn & Suites Hotel/Event Center, 7400 Hudson Road, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

c) The Ragged Edge Art Bar & Gallery, 504 Bluff Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service – 
renewal. 

d) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 
temporary additional outdoor service. (September 23, 2023) 

e) Aldi Inc., 315 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class B retail alcohol - new. 

 

49

Item 8.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

 M E M O R A N D U M     
 

Human Resources Division 
 

TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members  

FROM: Bailey Schindel, Human Resources Manager 

DATE: September 12, 2023              

SUBJECT: Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission FY24 Cooperative Agreement with 
the Iowa Civil Rights Commission 
 
 

Attached for your approval is a Cooperative Agreement between the Cedar Falls 
Human Rights Commission and the Iowa Civil Rights Commission (ICRC) for FY24. The 
Agreement allows the City to be compensated for locally processed intake and 
forwarding of human rights complaints to the State agency. 

If you have questions regarding the attached, feel free to contact me at 319-268-5531. 

Attachment 

     

50

Item 10.



51

Item 10.



52

Item 10.



53

Item 10.



54

Item 10.



55

Item 10.



56

Item 10.



57

Item 11.



58

Item 11.



59

Item 11.



60

Item 11.



61

Item 11.



62

Item 11.



63

Item 11.



64

Item 11.



65

Item 11.



66

Item 11.



67

Item 11.



68

Item 11.



69

Item 11.



70

Item 11.



71

Item 11.



72

Item 11.



73

Item 11.



74

Item 12.



75

Item 12.



76

Item 12.



77

Item 12.



78

Item 12.



79

Item 12.



80

Item 12.



81

Item 12.



82

Item 12.



83

Item 12.



84

Item 12.



85

Item 12.



86

Item 12.



87

Item 12.



88

Item 12.



89

Item 12.



90

Item 12.



91

Item 12.



92

Item 12.



93

Item 12.



94

Item 12.



95

Item 13.



96

Item 13.



97

Item 13.



98

Item 13.



99

Item 13.



100

Item 13.



101

Item 13.



102

Item 13.



103

Item 13.



104

Item 13.



105

Item 13.



106

Item 13.



107

Item 13.



108

Item 13.



109

Item 13.



110

Item 13.



111

Item 13.



112

Item 14.



113

Item 14.



114

Item 14.



115

Item 14.



116

Item 14.



117

Item 14.



118

Item 14.



119

Item 14.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: September 11, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Community Natatorium Grant Applications 
 
 
For several years, the City and Cedar Falls School District have collaborated in planning 
and identifying funding for a new community pool at the new high school on West 27th 
Street.  The Council approved a 28E Agreement for Swimming Pool Use, Operation and 
Maintenance in June along with a resolution to fund the pool $4,000,000 in FY24 and 
$4,000,000 FY25.  The community natatorium is being built in two phases: 

 Phase 1 - building shell and associated site improvements of the sidewalks and 
parking lot (a contract has been signed, permit obtained, and work has started) 

 Phase 2 is the pool and infrastructure to open and operate a functional pool (next 
phase, pending grants are obtained anticipate bidding in early 2024) 

The total project cost is estimated to be $21,200,000. 
 
Funding for this project relies on the City, School District, private fundraising, and 
several grants.  Two of the key grants are: Black Hawk County Gaming Association and 
the State of Iowa’s Community Attraction & Tourism (CAT) Grant.  The City’s CIP 
anticipates a grant of $900,000 from Gaming and $700,000 in a State grant.  Based on 
project costs, the plan is to request $950,000 from the State’s Enhance Iowa CAT grant.   
 
Staff is seeking Council approval to submit grant applications for both Gaming and the 
Enhance Iowa grant.  The City would be the lead on the grant applications, due to 
requirements by the funders.  The School District would be a co-applicant.  The School 
District would continue to be the owner, bidding the project and overseeing construction.  
Should the Council support submitting requests for grants, staff will work with the 
School District and Jump In to complete submittals. 
 
Two goals in the adopted Council Goals, Work Program and Financial Plan for FY24 
are achieved with this project:   

2.C.3)c. Coordinate with CFCSD on the completion of the new Cedar Falls 
High School; identify local, county and state facilities, programs and property 
which can minimize duplication of services and  

120

Item 15.



5.C.13) Continue collaboration CFCSD on the development of plans for a new 
indoor community pool, co-located with the new Cedar Falls High School.   

 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends that the City Council 
approve two resolutions on grants for the community natatorium, as follows: 

1. Approval to apply to the Black Hawk County Gaming Association for $900,000. 
2. Approval to apply to the State of Iowa’s Enhance Iowa: Community Attraction & 

Tourism (CAT) Grant for $950,000.  (This one will also indicate, for the purposes 
of this grant, that $1,233,333 of the City’s approved $8,000,000 will be allocated 
toward Phase 2.) 

 
 
 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 Mike Soppe, Recreation & Community Programs Manager 
 Dr. Andy Pattee, Superintendent (School District) 

121

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: September 11, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Memorandum of Agreement with the City of Waterloo for HOME/CDBG  
  5-Year Consolidated Plan Project Cost Share 

 
 
Federal regulations require that communities receiving federal funds from the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) develop a Consolidated Plan 
and an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing every five years.  The Consolidated 
Plan is HUD’s attempt to streamline the application process for various federal funds 
and coordinate strategies of local organizations geared toward community development 
and housing.  This requirement applies to both Community Development Block Grant 
funds and HOME funds the City receives as a part of the Waterloo-Cedar Falls HOME 
Consortium.  The Five Year Consolidated Plan serves as the City of Cedar Falls 
FY2020-FY2024 (Federal Fiscal Years 2019-2023) Community Development Block 
Grant application and as the Waterloo-Cedar Falls HOME Consortium application.  
Since the CDBG Consolidated Annual Plan has the same requirements as the HOME 
Consolidated Plan, Cedar Falls is able to use the same Plan for both programs.  
 
Cedar Falls proposes entering into an agreement with Waterloo to jointly contract with a 
consultant to develop our Five Year Consolidated Plan and Cedar Falls’ Annual Action 
Plan for the first year of that five-year period.  We have partnered in the past to 
complete the required plans for CDBG and HOME.  Together we completed a Request 
for Qualifications and cost proposal process, reviewing four responses.  Waterloo will 
hold the contract and intends to award it to Mosaic Community Planning.  Attached is a 
proposed Memorandum of Understanding outlining Waterloo’s contribution will be 68% 
of the project ($40,582) and Cedar Falls contribution proposed at 32% ($19,098). Our 
payments would be to Waterloo.  It is proposed that 50% of our $19,098 be paid at the 
start of project and the remaining portion paid at completion. 
 
Adopted Goal 2.B.5 of the Council Goals, Work Program and Financial Plan for FY24, 
states: Expand on existing collaborations with the City of Waterloo, CFU, UNI, Black 
Hawk County, and other governmental bodies to provide high-quality public services at 
lower cost…   

122

Item 17.



 
The Community Development Department recommends that the City Council adopt a 
resolution approving the Memorandum of Understanding with the City of Waterloo for 
payment of 32% of the project.  The Waterloo City Council is considering the same 
MOU at their September 18, 2023 meeting. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me.   
     
 
xc:  Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

123

Item 17.



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
 
This memorandum of understanding is between the City of Waterloo, Iowa hereinafter referred 
to as Waterloo, and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa hereinafter referred to as Cedar Falls. 
 
WHEREAS, a 5-Year Consolidated Action Plan and an updated Analysis of Impediments are 
required by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development, hereinafter referred to as 
HUD, in order to maintain the Waterloo/Cedar Falls HOME Consortium, and  
 
WHEREAS, Waterloo and Cedar Falls desire to continue under the HOME consortium for the 
purpose of expanding the supply of decent, safe, sanitary and affordable housing for low and 
moderate-income residents, and  
 
WHEREAS, both Waterloo and Cedar Falls each must have a 5-Year Consolidated Action Plan to 
comply with both HOME and Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) requirements. Each 
city must update their Analysis of Impediments prior to the 5-Year Consolidated Plan 
submission, and 
 
WHEREAS, a 5-Year Consolidated Action Plan also benefits Cedar Falls’ Housing Choice Voucher 
Program (Section 8), and 
 
WHEREAS, Waterloo and Cedar Falls will enter into an agreement with a consulting agency to 
complete its 5 -Year Consolidated Action Plan and update each city’s Analysis of Impediments to 
fulfill requirements as stated above. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, Waterloo and Cedar Falls agree as follows: 

1. Upon review by both parties a consensus was made to contract with Mosaic 
Community Planning to complete the 5-Year Consolidated Action Plan and update 
each city’s Analysis of Impediments at the proposed cost of $59,680.00 

2. The City of Waterloo will pay Mosaic Community Planning $40,582.00 for 68% of the 
work being completed on behalf of Waterloo. 

3. The City of Cedar Falls will pay Mosaic $19,098.00 for 32% of the work being 
completed on behalf of Cedar Falls.  

4. Payment shall be due upon receiving an invoice in the following phasing: 
a. 50% at the start of the project (contract approval), and 

b. 50% at completion of the project (adopted plan). 
 
City of Waterloo, Iowa 
 
 
BY:  
______________________________________ 

Quentin Hart, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
______________________________________ 

 Kelley Felchle, City Clerk 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
 
BY:  
______________________________________ 

Rob Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
______________________________________
 Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 

 

124

Item 17.



125

Item 18.



126

Item 18.



127

Item 18.



128

Item 18.



129

Item 18.



130

Item 18.



131

Item 18.



132

Item 18.



133

Item 18.



134

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

  

 
 
 
 TO: The Honorable Mayor Green and City Council 
 FROM: Cory Hurless, Cultural Programs Supervisor 

 DATE: September 7, 2023 

SUBJECT:  PAC Lease of sculpture 
 
Summary:  The Cedar Falls Art and Culture Board and staff have reviewed the attached 
contract with artist Rachel Heine to lease of a sculpture installed on the sculpture pad located at 
311 Main Street in downtown Cedar Falls, Iowa. The board respectfully requests that the City 
Council consider it for approval.  
 
Financial Considerations: The Cedar Falls Art & Culture Board has agreed (8/30/2023) to pay 
Ms. Heine $1000 for the lease of the selected work of art for one year. The board will have the 
first right to purchase the work of art as a permanent part of the public art collection, in which 
case Heine will be notified of the intent to purchase it at least 60 days prior to the end of the 
lease agreement period. 
 
Selection Process: The Cedar Falls Public Art Committee (PAC) asked Dan Perry, whom is 
part of the Public Art Incubator program at UNI and teach in the Department of Art, to help 
select student artworks to display for a year at a time on the “Miller Pad.” This student sculpture 
program is funded by the C. Hugh Pettersen Estate and the PAC “In Memory of Reuben & 
Hazel Miller, Miller Shoe Store, 319 Main Street, 1916-2002. Perry recommended the sculpture 
to the PAC. The recommendation was unanimously accepted.  
 
The Art & Culture Board recommend that City Council approve the agreement with Ms. Heine. If 
you have any questions or comments, please feel free to contact me. 
 
Thank you for your consideration of this request. 
 
CC: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager  
 

135

Item 19.



136

Item 19.



137

Item 19.



138

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

  

 
 
 
 TO: The Honorable Mayor Green and City Council 
 FROM: Cory Hurless, Cultural Programs Supervisor 

 DATE: September 7, 2023 

SUBJECT:  Iowa Arts Council stipend for operations support to host Poetry Out Loud 

at the Hearst Center 
 
The Hearst Center has verbally agreed to be the host for the regional Poetry Out Loud 
competition.  This will be the 5th year we have hosted this popular competition comprised of high 
school students’ recitation of modern and classical poetry.  Regional winners move on to 
compete at the state, and up to the national level.  National winners receive $50,000, along with 
a stipend to be paid to the school district in which the student is registered with.  Last year’s 
winner at our regional competition, a senior from West High, went on to compete at the national 
level in Washington D.C. 
 
The Iowa Arts Council extends a $1,000 stipend to organizations that host these regional 
competitions to help cover operational costs.  Payment will be issued to the City from the Iowa 
Arts Council in fall 2023. 
 
The stipend does not have a match requirement. Funds must be spent by June 30, 2024. 
 
Funding for the program is made possible by an annual appropriation from the Iowa Legislature 
to the Iowa Arts Council, a division of the Iowa Department of Economic Development and by 
the National Endowment for the Arts, a federal agency. 
 
 
Please reach out if you have any questions. 
 
CC: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager  
 

139

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

  

 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Green and City Council 
 FROM: Cory Hurless, Cultural Programs Supervisor 

 DATE: September 7, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Intent to apply for Arts Midwest GIG Fund Grant  
 
The GIG Fund is a grant opportunity offered by Arts Midwest, a non-profit philanthropic 
organization, whose major funding is appropriated from the National Endowment of the Arts, is 
dedicated to partnering with curators and arts institutions to ensure that audiences across the 
globe can be inspired by the creativity of the Midwest. The GIG Fund offers $2,000-4,000 grants 
to support creative projects and educational events in the Midwest.  
 
I intend to apply for a GIG Fund grant to fund an art invitational at the Hearst Center for the Arts, 
where we invite local/regional artists to create work for a specific thematic show for public 
viewing June 2024.  The grant would allow the Hearst to pay for marketing for the invitational, 
offer workshops in-house and outreach workshops with our current CAFÉ program partners to 
ensure we are providing equitable opportunities for various populations to create artwork to 
submit to this invitational opportunity. 
 
There is no match requirement for this grant.  The due date to submit intent to apply to the GIG 
fund is September 21, 2023, and the final grant narrative is due October 3, 2023.  All programs 
benefitted by the grant must take place between November 2023 and June 2024. 
 
 
Staff requests approval of the request to apply for this grant opportunity. Please reach out if you 
have any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CC: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism and Cultural Programs Manager 

Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director 

140

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

  

 
 
 
 TO: The Honorable Mayor Green and City Council 
 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: September 7, 2023 

SUBJECT:  Intent to Apply for an Iowa Tourism Grant 

 

The Iowa Tourism Grant (ITG) Program promotes tourism in Iowa by funding tourism-related 
marketing initiatives, meetings and events that benefit both local economies and the state's 
economy. ITG awards range from $2,500 to $10,000 and require a 20 percent cash match.  The 
Cedar Falls Tourism & Visitors Bureau plans to apply at the $10,000 level for the following: 

 
Digital Advertising: A digital ad campaign to promote Cedar Falls in Minnesota and 
Wisconsin. We would target areas based on data from Arrivalist that shows where 
visitors to Cedar Falls originate, and areas known for having active residents. If awarded, 
the campaign would be coordinated with our larger annual campaign scheduled by 
Moxie. Ads would promote trails and family-friendly activites to visitors from Minnesota 
and Wisconsin. This advertising aligns with our current efforts and the state’s efforts to 
reach younger active potential visitors with an emphasis on natural beauty (for visiting 
and quality of life) and culture & lifestyle (from art to festivals, breweries and 
restaurants). 
 

The application is due September 29, 2023. If awarded, funds may be used January 1 – 
December 31, 2024. The matching funds are accounted for in our current budget. 
 
If you have any questions about our application, please feel free to contact me. 
 
CC: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 

141

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: September 11th, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project  
  City Project Number: SW-000-3301 
  Contract Documents 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, 
Payment, and Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with 
Boulder Contracting for the construction of the 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project. 
 
This project involves the repair of deficient sidewalk adjacent to various property owners. 
The project will repair the deficient sidewalk for the adjacent property owner and assess 
the cost of repair to the property owner. Once the repair has been completed, the 
Engineering Division will submit a bill to the City Clerk. The City Clerk will then send notice 
to the adjacent property owner. The adjacent property owner will have 30 days to pay the 
bill without interest or penalty. If the adjacent property owner doesn’t pay the bill in 30 
days, the cost of repair will be applied to the property owners’ property taxes and spread 
over 5 years with interest. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving and 
executing the contract with Boulder Contracting for the construction of the 2023 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

142

Item 23.



16 

FORM OF CONTRACT 

 
This Contract entered into in quadruplicate at Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ____ day of _________, 

2023, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the Owner, and_____________ 

of ___________________, hereinafter called the Contractor. 

WITNESSETH: 

The Contractor hereby agrees to furnish all labor, tools, materials and equipment and construct 

the public improvement consisting of:  2023 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT, Project No. SW-

000-3301 all in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, ordered to be constructed by the City Council of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by Resolution duly passed on the 15th day of June, 2023 and shown and 

described in the Plans and Specifications therefore now on file with the City Clerk of said City. 

Said improvement shall be constructed strictly in accordance with said Plans and Specifications. 

The following parts of the Plans and Specifications for said Project No. SW-000-3301 attached 

hereto shall be made a part of this contract as fully as though set out herein verbatim: 

a. Resolution of Necessity 
b. Resolution ordering construction of the improvement 
c. Plans 
d. Notice of Public Hearing on Plans and Specifications 
e. Notice to Bidders 
f. Instructions to Bidders 
g. Supplemental Conditions 
h. General Conditions 
i. Project Specifications 
j. Form of Proposal 
k. Performance Bond 
l. Maintenance Bond 
m. Form of Contract 
n. Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 
o. Bidder Statues Form and Worksheet 
 

On completion of the said improvement, the Owner agrees to pay to the Contractor the prices set out in 

the Form of Proposal of the Contractor, said payment to be made in the manner stated in the published 

Notice to Bidders. 

143

Item 23.



17 

In Witness whereof, this Contract has been executed in quadruplicate on the date first herein written.

  

 
 __________________________ 
 Contractor 

 
 
    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
    By____________________________ 

    Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
 City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

144

Item 23.

Luke



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

8/30/2023

Holmes Murphy & Associates - CR
201 First Street SE, Suite 700
Cedar Rapids IA 52401

Kelli DeVries
319-896-7661

kdevries@holmesmurphy.com

Phoenix Insurance Company 25623
BOUCONPC Travelers Property Casualty Co. America 25674

Boulder Contracting, LLC
606 E. 1st St.
PO Box 310
Grundy Center IA 50638

Travelers Indemnity Co of CT 25682
Travelers Indemnity Company 25658

704298594

A X 1,000,000
X 300,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000
X

4TCO3W380051PHX23 3/1/2023 3/1/2024

2,000,000

D 1,000,000

X
8103W343276232SG 3/1/2023 3/1/2024

B X X 4,000,000
X

CUP1S91457923NF 3/1/2023 3/1/2024

4,000,000
X 10,000

C X

Y

UB3W380561232SG 3/1/2023 3/1/2024

500,000

500,000

500,000

Project Reference: SW-000-33-1 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project
Excluded Officers: Luke Kjormoe, Kittie Kjormoe, Kimberly Lynch, & Justin Lynch

City of Cedar Falls is included as an Additional Insureds on the General Liability as required by written contract with the insured, per policy terms and
conditions. The General Liability includes a Waiver of Subrogation in favor of the additional insured as required by written contract with the insured, per policy
terms and conditions. 30 days notice of cancellation will be provided per policy terms and conditions.

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PO

City of Cedar Falls
Deparment of Public Works
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls IA 50613
USA

145

Item 23.



Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond 
 

SURETY BOND NO.    
 
 

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 

That we,  ,  as  Principal  (hereinafter  the  or  and 
   as Surety are held and firmly bound unto 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, as Obligee (hereinafter referred and to all persons who  
may  be  injured  by  any  breach  of  any  of  the  conditions  of  this  Bond  in  the  penal  sum  of 

 

($  ), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum, well and truly to 
be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, legal representatives and assigns, jointly or severally, firmly by these 
presents. 

 
The conditions of the above obligations are such that whereas said Contractor entered into a contract with the 
Owner,  bearing date the  day of  , 2023, hereinafter 
Contractor undertakes and agrees to construct the following described improvements: 

 
2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project 

Sidewalk / Pavement / Seeding 
Project SW-000-3301 

 
and to faithfully perform all the terms and requirements of said Contract within the time therein specified, in a 
good and workmanlike manner, and in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
It is expressly understood and agreed by the Contractor and Surety in this bond that the following provisions are 
a part of this Bond and are binding upon said Contractor and Surety, to-wit: 

 
1. PERFORMANCE: The Contractor shall well and faithfully observe, perform, fulfill, and abide by each 

and every covenant, condition, and part of said Contract and Contract Documents, by reference made a 
part hereof, for the above referenced improvements, and shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner 
from all outlay and expense incurred by the Owner by reason of efault or failure to 
perform as required. The Contractor shall also be responsible for the default or failure to perform as 
required under the Contract and Contract Documents by all its subcontractors, suppliers, agents, or 
employees furnishing materials or providing labor in the performance of the Contract. 

 
2. PAYMENT: The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agreed to pay all just claims submitted 

by persons, firms, subcontractors, and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the 
performance of the Contract on account of which this Bond is given, including but not limited to claims 
for all amounts due for labor, materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, repairs on machinery, equipment, and 
tools, consumed or used by the Contractor or any subcontractor, wherein the same are not satisfied out 
of the portion of the contract price the Owner is required to retain until completion of the improvement, 
but the Contractor and Surety shall not be liable to said persons, firms, or corporations unless the claims 
of said claimants against said portion of the contract price  shall have been established as provided by 
law. The Contractor and Surety hereby bind themselves to the obligations and conditions set forth in 
Chapter 573 of the Iowa Code, which by this reference is made a part hereof as though fully set out 
herein. 

 
3. MAINTENANCE: The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agree, at their own expense: 

292561K

Boulder Contracting, LLC
Westfield Insurance Company

Seventy Four Thousand Four Hundred Seventy Three & 50/100 Dollars
74,473.50

146

Item 23.



A. To remedy any and all defects that may develop in or result from work to be performed 
under the Contract within the period of      2       year  (s) from the date of acceptance  of 
the work under the Contract, by reason of defects in workmanship or materials used in 
construction of said work; 

 
B. To keep all work in continuous good repair; and 

 
C. To pay the Owner of monitoring and inspection to assure that any defects 

are remedied, and to repay the Owner all outlay and expense incurred as a result of 
 and  failure to remedy any defect as required by this section. 

 

materials not discovered or known to the Owner at the time such work was accepted. 
 

4. GENERAL: Every Surety on this Bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract  to the 
contrary notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 

 
A. To consent without notice to any extension of time to the Contractor in which to perform 

the Contract; 
 

B. To consent without notice to any change in the Contract or Contract Documents, which 
thereby increases the total contract price and the penal sum of this bond, provided that all 
such changes do not, in the aggregate, involve an increase of more than 20% of the total 
contract price, and that this bond shall then be released as to such excess increase; and 

 
C. To consent without notice that this Bond shall remain in full force and effect until the 

Contract is completed, whether  completed within the specified contract period, within  an 
extension thereof, or within a period of time after the contract period has elapsed and the 
liquidated damage penalty is being charged against the Contractor. 

 
The Contractor and every Surety on the bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 
notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 

 
D. That no provision of this Bond or of any other contract shall be valid  that limits to less 

than five years after the acceptance of the work under the Contract the right to sue on this 
Bond. 

 
E. That as used herein, the phrase outlay and is not to be limited in any way, but 

shall include the actual and reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Owner including 
interest, benefits, and overhead where applicable.  Accordingly,  outlay and 
would include but not be limited to all contract or employee expense, all equipment usage 
or rental, materials, testing, outside experts, attorneys fees (including overhead expenses of 
the staff attorneys), and all costs and expenses of litigation as they are incurred by 
the Owner. It is intended the Contractor  and Surety will defend and indemnify the Owner 
on all claims made against the Owner on account of to perform as 
required in the Contract and Contract Documents, that all agreements and promises set forth 
in the Contract and Contract Documents, in approved change orders, and in this Bond will 
be fulfilled, and that the Owner will be fully indemnified so that it will be put into the 
position it would have been in had the Contract been performed in the first instance as 
required. 

147

Item 23.



In the eve
as to which the Contractor or Surety should have provided the defense, or in the enforcement 
of the promises given by the Contractor in the Contract, Contract Documents, or approved 
change orders, or in the enforcement of the promises given by the Contractor and Surety in 
this Bond, the Contractor and Surety agree that they will make the Owner whole for all such 

obligation under this bond shall not exceed 
125% of the penal sum of this bond. 

 
In the event that any actions or proceedings are initiated regarding this Bond, the parties agree that the venue 
thereof shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk County, State of Iowa. If legal action is required by 
the Owner to enforce the provisions of this Bond or to collect the monetary obligation incurring to the benefit of 
the Owner, the Contractor and the Surety agree, jointly, and severally, to pay the Owner all outlay and expense 
incurred therefor by the Owner. All rights, powers, and remedies of the Owner hereunder shall be cumulative 
and not alternative and shall be in addition to all rights, powers, and remedies given to the Owner, by law. The 
Owner may proceed against surety for any amount guaranteed hereunder whether action is brought against the 
Contractor or whether Contractor is joined in any such action(s) or not. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if said Principal shall faithfully perform all the 
promises of the Principal, as set forth and provided in the Contract, in the Contract Documents, and in this 
Bond, then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
When a work, term, or phrase is used in this Bond, it shall be interpreted or construed first as defined in this 
Bond, the Contract, or the Contract Documents; second, if not defined in the Bond, Contract, or Contract 
Documents, it shall be interpreted or construed as defined in applicable provisions of the Iowa Code; third,  if not 
defined in the Iowa Code, it shall be interpreted or construed according to its generally accepted meaning in the 
construction industry; and fourth, if it has no generally accepted meaning in the construction industry, it shall be 
interpreted or construed according to its common or customary usage. 

 
Failure to specify or particularize shall not exclude terms or provisions not mentioned and shall not limit 
liability hereunder. The Contract and Contract Documents are hereby made a part of this Bond. 

148

Item 23.



Project No. SW-000-3301 
 

Witness our hands, in triplicate, this  day of  , 2023. 
 

Surety Countersigned By: PRINCIPAL: 
 
 

Signature of Agent Contractor 
 
 

By:    
Signature 

 
Printed Name of Agent Title 

 

 

Company Name 
SURETY: 

 
 

  

Company Address Surety Company 
 

By:    
 

City, State, Zip Code Signature Attorney-in-Fact Officer 
 
 

 
Company Telephone Number Printed Name of Attorney-in-Fact Officer 

 
 

 
Company Name 

 
 

 

FORM APPROVED BY: 
Company Address 

 
 

City, State, Zip Code 

 
Attorney for Owner Company Telephone Number 

 
 

NOTE: 
 

1. All signatures on this performance, payment, and maintenance bond must be original 
signatures in ink; copies, facsimile, or electronic signatures will not be accepted. 

2. This bond must be sealed with the raised, embossing seal. 
3. The Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond must be valid on its 

face and sealed with the  seal. 
4. The name and -in-Fact/Officer entered on this 

bond must be exactly as listed on the Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying 
this bond. 

 
 
 
 

Boulder Contracting, LLC

Westfield Insurance Company

Joseph I. Schmit, Attorney-in-Fact

AssuredPartners Great Plains, LLC

4200 University Ave., Ste. 200

West Des Moines, Iowa 50266

(515) 244-0166

149

Item 23.

Luke

Luke



150

Item 23.



151

Item 23.



152

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: September 18, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension 

  City Project Number: RC-000-3244 
  Warranty Deeds 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is constructing Ashworth Drive on both the North and West sides 
of Hudson Road to connect the existing portions to Hudson Road. The street construction 
will also include installing water main, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer. This project 
required acquisition for new city ROW from one property. The city has closed on the 
following acquisitions: 
 

Parcel # Owner Parcel Acquisition Type 

1 David A. Nicol and Tamara M. Nicol 891426176009 Fee Title 

 
Attached is the acquisitions plat showing where this property is located and the specific 
acquisition taking place. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City 
Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving the warranty deed for this 
property acquisition. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

153

Item 24.



154

Item 24.



155

Item 24.



156

Item 24.



157

Item 24.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: September 7, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Partial Property Tax Exemption for KL Iowa 01, LLC 
  6313 Production Drive in the Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
 
Staff would like to request that City Council set a date of public hearing for the above 
referenced project that was approved by a Development Agreement in March 2022.  
The requested date of public hearing will be October 2, 2023.  Additional information 
regarding the partial property tax exemption and project status will be provided to City 
Council prior to the public hearing. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
 

158

Item 25.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND DIRECTING 

PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED 

ORDINANCE GRANTING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO KL 

IOWA 01, LLC, FOR A NEW INDUSTRIAL USE WAREHOUSE AND 

MANUFACTURING FACILITY CONSTRUCTED AT 6313 PRODUCTION DRIVE, 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 WHEREAS, a request was submitted by KL Iowa 01, LLC, to the City Council of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to adopt an Ordinance granting a partial property tax 

exemption to KL Iowa 01, LLC, in connection with an industrial use warehouse and 

manufacturing facility constructed at 6313 Production Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that a public hearing should be 

scheduled on said request, and notice of said public hearing should be published as required 

by law. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the request of KL Iowa 01, LLC, to pass an Ordinance granting a partial 

property tax exemption to KL Iowa 01, LLC, in connection with an approximate 

50,000 square foot industrial use warehouse and manufacturing facility constructed 

on property located at 6313 Production Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa, more particularly 

described as follows: 

 

Lots 9, 10 and 11, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar 

Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 4.35 acres more or less). 

 

2. That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said 

public hearing in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier once, not less than four (4) nor 

more than twenty (20) days before the date of said hearing. 

159

Item 25.



 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of September, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

160

Item 25.



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of 

Resolution Number _______ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on 

the ________ day of ______________, 2023. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the 

official seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this _______ day of _____________, 2023. 

 

   

 Jacqueline Danielsen 

 City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

  

 

 

 

161

Item 25.



162

Item 26.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
DAILY INVOICES FOR 9/18/23 COUNCIL MEETING



163

Item 26.



164

Item 26.



165

Item 26.



166

Item 26.



167

Item 26.



168

Item 26.



169

Item 26.



170

Item 26.



171

Item 26.



172

Item 26.



173

Item 26.



174

Item 26.



175

Item 26.



176

Item 26.



177

Item 26.



178

Item 26.



179

Item 26.



180

Item 26.



181

Item 26.



182

Item 26.



183

Item 26.



184

Item 26.



185

Item 26.



186

Item 26.



187

Item 26.



188

Item 26.



189

Item 26.



190

Item 26.



191

Item 26.



192

Item 26.



193

Item 26.



194

Item 26.



195

Item 26.



196

Item 26.



197

Item 26.



198

Item 26.



199

Item 26.



200

Item 26.



201

Item 26.



202

Item 26.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
COUNCIL INVOICES FOR 9/18/23 MEETING



203

Item 26.



204

Item 26.



205

Item 26.



206

Item 26.



207

Item 26.



208

Item 26.



209

Item 26.



210

Item 26.



211

Item 26.



212

Item 26.



213

Item 26.



214

Item 26.



215

Item 26.



216

Item 26.



217

Item 26.



218

Item 26.



219

Item 26.



220

Item 26.



221

Item 26.



222

Item 26.



223

Item 26.



224

Item 26.



225

Item 26.



226

Item 26.



227

Item 26.



228

Item 26.



229

Item 26.



230

Item 26.



231

Item 26.



232

Item 26.



233

Item 26.



234

Item 26.



235

Item 26.



236

Item 26.



237

Item 26.



238

Item 26.



239

Item 26.



240

Item 26.



241

Item 26.



242

Item 26.



243

Item 26.



244

Item 26.



245

Item 26.



246

Item 26.



247

Item 26.



248

Item 26.



249

Item 26.



250

Item 26.



251

Item 26.



252

Item 26.



253

Item 26.



254

Item 26.



255

Item 26.



256

Item 26.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of September 5, 2023
	230905MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation-Women in Politics Day
	2023-09-23_WomenInPoliticsDay

	Item 3.	PH-KATZ Properties, LLC
	1_Memo to Council for Approval of Land Conveyance to KATZ Properties, LLC
	2_Site Map
	3_Resolution Approving Conveyance to KATZ Properties, LLC
	4_Quit Claim Deed to Katz Properties, LLC

	Item 4.	3041-Parking Requirements-Institutional Uses
	1 - Memo.CC. ph.parking for civic uses in CD-DT
	2- Ordinance - parking excep for institutional uses in CD-DT
	3.1-St. Patrick City Council Letter 21AUG23 Meeting
	3.2-St. Patrick Campus Exhibit 7-24-23
	3.3-Richardson Funeral Services Letter
	4-First United Methodist Letter 2023
	5-Brian Wingert Amendment Letter

	Item 5.	3042-Bike & Ped Commission
	1. Memo_CC.8.21.2023
	2. Ord. 3042 - Bike Ped Commission
	3. Bicycle and Pedestrian Commission Bylaws

	Item 6.	3043-Parking-Dakota Street
	1. Memo - Limited Parking on University Avenue frontage road Ordinance
	2. Dakota Street (1)
	3. Redlined Sec._23-374 and 23-379_Final
	4. 3043-Parking Dakota St-UNI Frontage Road

	Item 7.	Committee Minutes-09-05-23
	09-05-23 Final Standing Committee Meeting Minutes

	Item 8.	Liquor-Beer 9-18-23
	Retail alcohol 9-18-23

	Item 10.	ICRC Cooperative Agreement-FY24
	HRC FY24 COOP ICRC Agreement
	FY24 HRC ICRC Coop Agreement

	Item 11.	Assessment-1113 Lindale Road
	1113 Lindale Rd

	Item 12.	Assessment-1119 Calumett
	1119 Calumett Drive

	Item 13.	Assessment-2520 Central Avenue
	2520 Central Ave

	Item 14.	Grant-CF Fire Rescue Division
	Fireworks Grant Total

	Item 15.	Enhance Iowa CAT Grant App-CFHS Community Pool
	1. Council Memo grant apps 9-18-23

	Item 17.	MOU-Waterloo-HOME/CDBG 5-Year Consolidated Plan Project Cost Share
	1. Council memo cost-share MOU
	2. Waterloo-Cedar Falls MOU 5 Year Consolidated Plan

	Item 18.	Red House Lease Agreement
	1486_001

	Item 19.	Lease of Sculpture
	PAC_sculpturelease _MillerPad_09072023
	PAC_sculpturelease_rachelheine_091123

	Item 20.	Stipend-Iowa Arts Council-Poetry Out Loud
	IowaArtsCouncil _POL_09072023

	Item 21.	Arts Midwest-GIG Grant
	Hearst Grant Request_Arts Midwest_09072023

	Item 22.	Iowa Tourism Grant-Digital Advertising
	IA Tourism Grant Funding _Tourism Programs_091823

	Item 23.	Contract - 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project
	1. Memo Contracts - 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Project
	2. Form of Contract Signed
	3. COL - Boulder
	4. Performance, Proposal, Maintenance Bond
	5. Form of Proposal - 2023 Sidewalk Assessment

	Item 24.	Warranty Deed - Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension
	1. Warranty Deed Memo - Ashworth Drive
	Nicol Deed-Ashworth Drive

	Item 25.	Set PH-KL Iowa 01, LLC
	1_Memo to Council Setting PH on PPTE Ordinance 10-02-23
	Res. - KL Iowa 01 LLC

	Item 26.	Bills and Claims
	1 Daily Invoices 091823
	2 Council Invoices 091823

	Bottom

